Index to notes forming part of the financial statements For the year ended 31 December 2019

Contents

State	ement of Management's Responsibilities for the Preparation and Approval of the Fina	ıncial
Stater	ments for the Year Ended December 31, 2019	3
Indep	endent Auditor's Report	4
1.	About the Company	11
2.	Basis of preparation	11
3.	Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements	12
4.	Financial instruments - Risk Management	12
5.	Fund management fees	15
6.	Other operating expenses	16
7.	Income tax	
8.	Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	16
9.	Deferred tax assets	17
10.	Other assets	18
11.	Payables	18
12.	Related party transactions	18
13.	Contingent Liabilities	18
14.	Events after reporting period	19
15.	Accounting policy	19
Annex	A. Fair Value measurement disclosures	24

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019

1. About the Company

Capital Asset Management CJSC (the Company) is the first registered investment and pension fund manager in the Republic of Armenia. The Company was founded on October 18, 2012 and has been registered in the Central Bank of Armenia (CBA) as an investment fund manager with granted license number 1. The Company's registered office is 7 Argishti, 1st floor office 101, Yerevan, Republic of Armenia. The activity of the Company is regulated by CBA. The Company manages and administers assets held in unit funds. The financial statements of these entities are not included in these financial statements.

The only shareholder of the "Capital Asset Management" CJSC is Tigran Karapetyan.

The Company operates the following open ended voluntary pension and investment funds:

- CAM Government Securities Investment Fund
- CAMavor 1 PENSION FUND
- CAMavor 2 PENSION FUND
- CAM Bridge Fund I
- CAM Bridge Fund II

Average number of employees for the year ended31 December 2019 was 8 (31 December 2018: 6).

2. Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out in note 15. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Armenian Drams (AMD), which is also the Company's functional currency. Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations (collectively IFRSs).

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with adopted IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. The areas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their effect are disclosed in note 3.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are measured at fair value.

Changes in accounting policies

a) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2019

- IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16);
- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment (IFRIC 23).

None of the above mentioned had significant effect on the Company's financial statements.

b) New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

There were no new standards, interpretations and amendments that are not yet effective that will have or may have an impact on the Company's future financial statements.

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The Company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual outcome may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimates and assumptions

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Company's financial statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Company's financial and non-financial assets and liabilities utilizes market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements are categorized into different levels based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilized are (the 'fair value hierarchy'):

- Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted)
- Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items between levels are recognized in the period they occur. The Company measures fund units at fair value (Note 8).

4. Financial instruments - Risk Management

The Company is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:

- Credit risk,
- Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk,
- Liquidity risk.

In common with all other businesses, the Company is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments.

This note describes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial statements.

There have been no substantive changes in the Company's exposure to financial instrument risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous periods.

(a) Principal financial instruments

The principal financial instruments used the Company, from which financial instrument risks arise, are as follows:

- Finasial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Payables.

(b) Financial instruments by category

Financial asset

	Fair value measurement		Amortized cost	
	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Cash and cash equivalents	-	-	1,111	7
Finacial assets at fair value through				
profit or loss	266,283	224,628	_	-
Receivables			20,184	4,932
Total	266,283	224,628	21,295	4,939
Financial liabilities				
	2019	2018	2019	2018
	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000
Payables			651	1,080
Total			651	1,080

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables.

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables approximates their fair value.

(d) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Financial Instruments fair value hierarchy is presented below

	Level 2	2
December 31	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Finacial assets at fair value through profit or loss	266,283	224,628
	266,283	224,628

Appendix A details the fair value hierarchy and significant unobservable inputs relating to valuation techniques that are included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the reporting period there were no changes in the levels. The valuation techniques and significant observable inputs used in determining the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, as well as the primary observable inputs and fair value relationships are presented below.

Financial instrument	Measurement method
Finacial assets at fair value through profit or loss	Units measured at fair value of respective funds as at the reporting date published by the Funds.

There were no changes in the valuation technique used to measure the fair value during the reporting period.

Common goals, policies and processes

Company management has overall responsibility for risk management, goals and policies. The management receives monthly reports from the Company's chief accountant, thereby verifying the effectiveness of the processes and compliance with the stated goals and policies.

The management aims to define policies that minimize risk while avoiding the Company's competitiveness and flexibility. Details of this policy are described below.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company bears credit risk primarily on investing activities and bank balances. The Company seeks to control its credit risks by applying monitored investment strategy as well as reasonable judgement in selection of of servicing banking partners. The Company may enter into secured financing transactions such as sale and repurchase agreements or purchase and resale agreements. For secured transactions involving repurchase and resale agreements the Company is permitted to sell or repledge the securities held as collateral and use these securities to enter into securities lending arrangements or to deliver to counterparties to cover any short positions.

The Company has policies and procedures for the management of credit exposures (for recognised financial assets and unrecognised contractual commitments).

The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets in the statement of financial position and in unrecognised contractual commitments. The impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not significant.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 credit risk exposure of financial assets are presented in the table below:

	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Cash and cash equivalents	1,111	7
Finacial assets at fair value through profit or loss	266,283	224,628
Trade receivebles	20,184	4,932
	287,578	229,567

Cash at bank

The Company believes that the risk of cash at bank can be deemed as insignificant, since the financial institutions selected for investment of the Company's funds are reliable and authoritative.

A significant amount of cash is held with the following institutions:

	2019	2018
	AMD'000	AMD'000
Bank 1	1,065	1
Bank 2	46_	6
	1,111	7

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Company's management of own funds. It is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash available to meet its liabilities when they become due. To achieve this aim, it seeks to maintain cash balances (or agreed facilities) to meet expected requirements in reasonable timeframe.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cashflows) of financial liabilities:

Up to 3 months	31 December 2019 AMD'000	31 December 2018 AMD'000
Trade payables	651	1,080

Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to the risk that the fair value or income / future cash flows of its financial instruments portfolio will fluctuate as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates. In respect of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments, the Company's policy is to transact in financial instruments that mature such that they best correspond to the maturity of financial liabilities. Nevertheless, the impact of interest rate risk can be high due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

5. Fund management fees

	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Management fees from investment funds Management fees from pensian funds	56,255 2,677	33,237 2,320
Other	-	1,760
	58,932	37,317

Company revenue from the fund management services is recognized on a daily basis and calculated base on net active values of funds. The Company typically collects revenue from management services within the following month.

6. Other operating expenses

	2019	2018
	AMD'000	AMD'000
Employee benefit expenses	16,138	13,775
Audit and other consulting services	7,200	6,750
Short-term lease expenses	6,201	11,962
Servicing and maintenance	3,050	-
Depreciation and amortization	1,494	1,356
Communication expenses	928	1,017
Other operating expenses	888	680
	35,899	35,540
7. Income tax		
	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Deferred income tax benefit	712	4,972
Total income tax benefit	712	4,972

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax expenses of the year and the profit tax rate in the Republic of Armenia are as follows:

Profit before tax	2019 AMD'000 67,039	2018 AMD'000 28,088
Profit tax using the Company's profit tax rate of 20.0% (2018 - 20.0%)	13,408	5,618
Effect of non-deductible non-taxable income, net	(8,415)	(4,412)
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses	(5,405)	(1,263)
Recognition of previously not recognized deferred tax assets on tax losses	(459)	(3,788)
Effect on tax rate adjustments (Note 9)	159	-
Recognition of previously not recognized deferred tax assets	-	(1,127)
Total effective tax income) and effective rate	(712)	(4,972)
8. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss		
	2019	2018
	AMD'000	AMD'000
Units held in funds under management	266,283	224,628
-	266,283	224,628

9. Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 18% (2018: 20%). The change in deferred tax calculation rate relates to the amendments to Tax Code adopted on 25 June 2020, based on which profit tax rate is changed from previous 20% to 18%. The Change become effective from the annual periods starting from 1 January 2020.

	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
At 1 January	4,972	1,184
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss	712	3,788
At 31 December	5,684	4,972

During the reporting period the Company utilized AMD 5,405 thousand of previously unrecognized tax losses. As at 31 December 2019 the Copmpany have not recognized deferred tax of AMD 2,885 thousand with respect to unrecognised tax losses, which can be utilised during 2020-2021.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by IAS 12) during the period are shown below.

	Balance as at 31.12.2018	2019 recognized in profit or loss	Balance as at 31.12.2019
Deferred tax assets, including Provisions	1,184 1,157	342 342	1,499 1,499
Deferred tax liabilities, including Property and equipment Net deferred tax asset/(liability)	27 27 1,184	(89) (89) 253	(62) (62) 1,437
Tax loss carry-forward	3,788	459	4,247
Total movement of net deferred tax asset/(liability)	4,972	712	5,684
	Balance as at 31.12.2017	2018 recognized in profit or loss	Balance as at 31.12.2018
Deferred tax assets, including Provisions	-	1,184 1,157	1 ,184 1,157
Deferred tax liabilities, including	-	27	27
In terms of property and equipment			
	-	27 1.184	27 1.184
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) Tax loss carryforward		27 1,184 3,788	27 1,184 3,788

10. Other assets		
	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Receivables from funds Other	20,184 176 20,360	4,932 1,098 6,030
11. Payables		
	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Accruals on vacation leave	4,728	3,383
Accruals on audit	3,600	720
Other payables	1,137_	1,669
	9,465	5,772

12. Related party transactions

In accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, parties are considered to be related if one party has ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. On June 03, 2019 the transfer of 100% shares of the Company from Capital Investments CJSC to the ultimate controling party Tigran Karapetyan has been registered.

Transactions with related parties at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Key Management Personnel Compensation

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, including the Company's Director. The costs related to remuneration of key management personnel are presented below.

	2019 AMD'000	2018 AMD'000
Salary, other compensation	8,400	8,330

13. Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2019 the Company had no liabilities related to capital investments (as well as, as of December 31, 2018)

As of December 31, 2019 the Company has provided no guarantees regarding repayment of liabilities of any party (the same applies to 31.12.2018)

As of 31 December 2019 there were no legal actions against the Company (the same applies to 31.12.2018)

14. Events after reporting period

Taking into consideration the wide geographical spread of the new type of coronavirus (COVID-19), especially after the reporting period in the territory of the Republic of Armenia, as well as the RA Government's decision of the state of emergency from March 16 to April 14, the Fund Manager consider that the created situation could negatively impact on net assets attributable to the unitholders, in particular, it can lead to:

- Reduction of Investor sentiments
- increase in interest rates and decrease in the fair values of securities

In such conditions of the unpredictability of events, the Fund Manager is unable to give a reliable estimate of the impact of such circumstances on the Fund's financial statements. The Fund's financial statements do not include the effect of adjustments that could have been considered necessary if the above circumstances were observable and measurable in the Republic of Armenia.

15. Accounting policy

Income from main activity

Fund management fees are recognised based on the net asset values of investment funds. Management fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a time-proportion basis. Asset management fees related to investment funds are recorded proportionately over the period the service is provided.

Asset management and administration fees relate to fees earned on fiduciary activities where the Company holds or invests assets on behalf of its clients, and provides other asset-based financial services. These fees are based upon daily balances of client assets invested in these funds. The fair values of client assets included in funds are based on quoted market prices and other observable market data.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are converted into the functional currency at the closing exchange rate as of the day of the transaction, and at the average exchange rate announced by the CBA in case of closing price absence.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are recalculated at the current exchange rate at the date the fair value of the functional currency is determined.

Exchange differences arising from the foreign currency items account are recognized in profit or loss as net gains/losses on foreign exchange differences, except for financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss that are recognized at fair value, the element of net profit or loss arising from the revaluation of financial instruments measured through profit or loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense, including interest income from non-derivative financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized in profit or loss, respectively, as interest income or expense.

Stock transactions and investment income

Stock transactions are accounted for at the date of the transaction (sale or purchase of securities). Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis. Dividends are accounted on the date of the previous dividends. Value of securities is calculated based on weighted average cost.

Financial instruments

The Company recognizes the financial assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the financial instrument contract. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are accounted for at the end of the reporting period. Regular way purchases or sales of financial instruments are the purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of the assets within the time frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Financial assets or liabilities are initially measured at fair value. In the case of financial assets or liabilities that are not classified in the group of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, the transaction costs are added (or removed) to the fair value, which are directly attributable to the purchase or issue of a financial asset or liability. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities "measured at fair value through profit or loss" are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: (a) financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); (b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); c) financial assets measured at amortized cost. The classification depends on the nature of the cash flows resulting from the financial assets and the business model, under which the asset is held and designated at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. Financial asset is classified as "measured at fair value through profit or loss" if it is classified neither as measured at amortized cost (as described below) nor as measured at FVOCI (as described below). Additionally, at initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate any financial asset (which meets the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI) as measured at FVTPL, if this eliminates or essentially reduces the accounting mismatch that could otherwise have arisen.

A financial asset is classified as measured "at fair value through other comprehensive income" (FVOCI) if:

- It is held under a business model, which aims at collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- At initial recognition, it forms a part of the portfolio of certain financial instruments managed jointly by the Company and has a realistic possibility of short-term profit making; or
- Its contractual terms give rise to cash flows on the specified dates, which are solely interest payments on principal and outstanding principal.

A financial asset is classified as measured "at amortized cost" if it complies with the following two conditions and has not been designated as measured at FVTPL:

- It is held under a business model, which aims at holding assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- Its contractual terms give rise to cash flows on the specified dates, which are solely interest payments on principal and outstanding principal.

Financial assets, which are debt instruments and are not classified as measured at FVPOL, are subject to impairment test using the expected credit loss model. According to this model, a credit loss provision should be recognized in the amount of expected credit losses (ECL) during 12 months after the reporting date. However, if the instrument's credit risk has significantly increased since its initial recognition, the provision should be recognized for the whole life of the instrument in the amount of ECL.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets when the contractual rights with respect to cash flows resulting from the financial asset become void, or when these rights are transferred to a third party. If the Company substantially neither transfers nor retains all the risks and returns related to ownership of the financial asset, but retains control over the transferred asset, the Company

continues to recognize the financial asset, as well as its associated liability to the extent that its involvement in the financial asset is kept. If the Company substantially retains all the risks and returns related to ownership of the financial asset, the Company shall continue to recognize the financial asset, as well as the borrowing pledged as collateral for the received return.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured "at fair value through profit or loss" (FVTPL) or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss when the financial liability is held for sale or classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liability is classified as held for sale if:

- it has been acquired primarily for a short-term repurchase; or
- initial recognition, it forms a part of the portfolio of certain financial instruments managed jointly by the Company and has a realistic possibility of short-term profit making; or
- it is a derivative instrument that is not intended or used as a hedging tool.

A financial liability not held for trading purposes may be classified as measured at FVTPL at the time of recognition, if:

- such classification excludes or significantly reduces the measurement or recognition mismatch that would otherwise have occurred; or
- a financial liability forms a part of financial assets or financial liabilities or the group of assets and liabilities, which is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and the grouping information is provided internally on theses grounds; or
- It is a part of the contract, that contains one or more of the embedded derivatives, and the entire contract (assets or liabilities) is classified as measured at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are presented at fair value, and the gain or loss arising from their remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss except for the change in the fair value from the part attributable to the credit risk, which is presented in other comprehensive income.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, less transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, recognizing the interest expense on the basis of efficiency.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability only when the Company's obligations are repaid, canceled, or become void. When a financial liability to the same lender is replaced by another financial liability (the terms of which substantially vary from the previous one), or there has been a material change in the terms of the present liability, such replacement or change is recognized as derecognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the derecognized financial liability and compensation paid and payable is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The initial cost comprises any costs directly attributable to acquisition and bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner.

If an asset comprises two or more major components with different useful lives, then each component should be accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment (major components).

Capital Asset Management CJSC

Replacement costs for a separate item of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the carrying amount of that fixed asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied in that part will flow to the Company and its value can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Computer equipement - 1-5 years

Household and office equipment, other fixed assets - 5-10 years:

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and are adjusted if appropriate.

Externally acquired intangible assets

Externally acquired intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives.

Softwares- 10 years.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is when declared by the directors. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized where the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position differs from its tax base, except for differences arising on:

- The initial recognition of goodwill,
- The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting or taxable profit, and
- Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the difference and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Recognition of deferred tax assets is restricted to those instances where it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The amount of the deferred asset or liability is determined using tax rates that are expected to apply when the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are settled/(recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it would appear, that the Company will be required to meet the liability and the amount of the liability can be assessed accurately.

The amount recognized as a reserve is the best estimate at the end of the reporting period that will be required to settle an existing obligation, taking into account the associated risks and uncertainties. If the effect of the monetary value is significant over time, the amount of the provision should the present value of the costs that would be required to pay the arrears.

If any other party is expected to fully or partially compensate for expenses, required to discharge the provision, the compensation should be treated as a separate asset when it is certain that in the event

Capital Asset Management CJSC

of settlement of arrears by the Company, the reimbursement will be satisfied and the recoverable amount can be measured reliably.

Securities purchased and redeemed under the REPO agreement

Securities received under REPO agreements shall be credited off-balance sheet as collateral security. Amounts paid for securities received under repurchase agreements are credited as secured loans. Interest earned on *that* basis is recognized on an accrual basis in profit or loss and is included in other operating income. Securities issued under REPO agreements are accounted for in their balance sheet. The amounts received for securities issued by the REPO agreements are recorded as received loans. Interest paid on them is recognized on an accrual basis in the profit or loss as interest expenses.

Capital Asset Management CJSC

Annex A. Fair Value measurement disclosures

The following table sets out the valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values including the key unobservable inputs used and the relationship between unobservable inputs to fair value.

Item	Fair value, AMD'000	Valuation technique	Fair value hierarchy level	Significant unobservable inputs
Fund units	266,283	Units are measured at fair value of respective funds as reporting date published by the Funds.	Level 2	Not applicable
Receivables	20,184	The carrying amount of short term (less than 12 months) payable approximates its fair values.	Level 3	None
Payables	651	The carrying amount of short term (less than 12 months) receivable approximates its fair values.	Level 3	None